
TIRZ 17 Redevelopment Authority 

Memorial City Redevelopment Authority 


Houston, Texas 


The Board of Directors of the TIRZ 17 Redevelopment Authority (aka the Memorial City Redevelopment 
Authority) will hold a regular meeting on February, Wednesday the 5th

, at 3:00 PM, in the Commons 
meeting room at HCC Spring Branch Campus, 1010 West Sam Houston Parkway, Houston, Texas 77043, 
to diSCUSS, and if appropriate, act upon the following items: 

1. 	 Call meeting to order, take attendance, and verify a quorum is present. 
2. 	 Comments from the public. 
3. 	 Approve minutes of Board of Directors meeting dated December 3,2013. 
4. 	 Financial and bookkeeping matters, including payment of invoices, review of investments 

and project cash flow reports. 
5. 	 local Interaction Group report and update. 
6. 	 Terminate agreement with Spring Branch Management District for maintenance of 

Westview Esplanade. 
7. 	 lumpkin Road Improvements Project, including: 

a. 	 Open discussion and Board approval for landscape amenities and lighting options. 
b. 	 Review and approve task order from SWA Group for CIP #1709, "Professional Design 

Services - Detailed Design." 
c. 	 Approve City of Houston MOU for the Westview Detention Basin Maintenance. 
d. 	 Right of Entry and Maintenance Agreement with Houston Community College. 
e. 	 Review and approve proposal to perform limited phase II Environmental Assessment. 

8. 	 W140 Detention Basin Project, including: 
a. 	 Construction status of basin package (Phase II); 
b. 	 Approval of time modifications, changes in work or pay applications (Phase II). 

9. 	 Barryknoll East Improvement Project, including: 
a. 	 Construction status; 
b. 	 Approval of time modifications, changes in work or pay applications. 

10. Executive Director's Report. 
11. 	Discuss employment review and compensation committee. 
12. Convene in Executive Session pursuant to Section 551.072, Texas Government Code, to 

deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property. 
13. Reconvene in Open Session and authorize appropriate action regarding the purchase, 

exchange, lease, or value of real property. . 
14. Authorize appraisal and/or purchase of real property. 
15. Adjournment. 

~I~ 
Attor ey for the Authority 

Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and would like to request auxiliary aids or services are requested to 
contact Don Huml at (713) 829-5720 or donhuml@houstontirz17.org at least 72 hours prior to the meeting so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made. For complaints or concerns regarding compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act, please contact Don Huml, Executive Directorforthe Authority. 

471774.docx 

mailto:donhuml@houstontirz17.org


Memorial City Redevelopment Authority 
8955 Katy Freeway, Suite 215 
Houston, Texas 77024 
713-829-5720 

BOARD PACKET INDEX 
February 5, 2014 

Agenda Number and Item Page Numbers 

3. Approve meeting minutes 1 – 4 
4. Financial matters 5 – 22 
4. Invoices 23 – 56 
6. Terminate agreement with SBMD 57 – 65 
7a. Landscape amenities 66 - 69 
7b. SWA Group task order 70 - 80 
7c. City of Houston MOU 81 - 82 
7d. HCC Right of entry 83 - 90 
7e. Phase II environmental 91 - 104 
8. W-140 Detention basin project 105 - 110 
9. Barryknoll project 111 - 121 
10. Executive Director’s report 122 - 136 



MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
TIRZ 17 Redevelopment Authority/Memorial City Redevelopment Authority 

City of Houston, Texas 

December 3, 2013 

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the TIRZ 17 Redevelopment Authority/ 
Memorial City Redevelopment Authority (the “Authority”) met in regular session, open 
to the public, on December 3, 2013, in the HEB Community Room, 9710 Katy Freeway, 
Houston, Texas. 

Board members in attendance: 
Ann T. Givens, Chair  
Brad Freels, Vice Chair 
Glenn Airola, Secretary 
Bob Tucker, Assistant Secretary 
David A. Hamilton, Director 
John Rickel, Director 

Board members not in attendance: 
Zachary R. Hodges, Director 

Staff in attendance: 
Don Huml – Executive Director 

Consultants in attendance: 
Michelle Lofton – ETI Bookkeeping Services  
Raphael Ortega – Lockwood, Andrews & Newnam, Inc.  
Jessica Holoubek and Kristen Hogan – Allen Boone Humphries Robinson LLP 
Gary Struzick - Klotz Associates, Inc. 
James Vick – SWA Group 
Bob Collins and Fred Junkin - Andrews Kurth LLP 

City of Houston representatives in attendance: 
Enrique Reyes - Council Member Helena Brown’s office 
Ralph De Leon, Mary Buzak, and Jack Valinski – City of Houston (the “City”) 

1. Call Meeting to Order

Having established that a quorum of the Board was present, Mr. Huml called the
meeting to order. 

2. Public Comments

Mr. David Robinson commented on the upcoming local election and his
background and candidacy for City Council At-Large Position No. 2. 

Ms. Roberta Prazak commented on the ad hoc committee meeting, City 

Page 1



representation at today’s meeting, and Director Airola’s service on the Memorial City 
Management District board. 

 
Mr. David Tresch commented on the Fon Villas homeowners association meeting 

and traffic impact of the two proposed new apartment complexes.   
 
Mr. Ed Browne commented on the W140 project and the Bunker Hill bridge.   
 
Ms. Virginia Gregory commented on drainage from a recent rainfall event and 

resulting traffic detours. 
 

3. Minutes of October 29, 2013 Meeting 
 

The Board reviewed the minutes of the October 29, 2013, meeting.  Following 
discussion, Director Tucker moved to approve the minutes as submitted. The motion 
was seconded by Director Rickel and carried unanimously. 

 
4. Financial and Bookkeeping Matters  
 

Ms. Lofton reviewed the financial report for October and presented checks for 
payment by the Authority.  The Board discussed payment of the regular monthly bills 
in December.  After review and discussion, Director Tucker moved to approve the 
financial report and payment of the bills presented and to authorize Directors Tucker, 
Hamilton, and Rickel to execute any necessary checks for regular monthly bills received 
in December.  The motion was seconded by Director Rickel and carried unanimously.  

 
5. Local Interaction Group Report and Update 
 
 Directors Hamilton and Givens reported on a recent meeting of the Local 
Interaction Group.   
 
6. Special Presentation Regarding TIRZ 17 Website Upgrade 
 

Mr. Huml discussed possible upgrades to the Authority’s website and reviewed 
websites of similar entities.  Mr. De Leon noted information about TIRZ 17 included on 
the City’s website. 
 
7. Solicit Proposals from Technical Consultants to Upgrade and Maintain the 

TIRZ 17 Website 
 

Upon discussion, Director Freels moved to authorize Mr. Huml to solicit 
proposals from technical consultants who have worked on similar websites to upgrade 
and maintain the TIRZ 17 website.  Director Hamilton seconded the motion, and it 
carried by unanimous vote. 

 

Page 2



8. Authorize the Purchase of Safety Vests and Hard Hats with TIRZ 17 Logos 
 

Mr. Huml reviewed a proposal in the amount of $1,267.62 from Abatix for 
purchase of 24 safety vests and 20 hard hats with the TIRZ 17 logo.  Upon a motion 
made by Director Airola and seconded by Director Tucker, the Board voted 
unanimously to approve the proposal from Abatix. 

 
9. Lumpkin Road Improvement Project 
 

The Board reviewed options for landscape amenity packages prepared by SWA 
Group for the Lumpkin Road improvement project.  Director Givens moved to approve 
package A for high level improvements.  Director Freels seconded the motion and 
discussion ensued.  Mr. Vick clarified that the amenity package options prepared by 
SWA Group include the portion of Lumpkin Road from the Frontage Road to 
Westview.  The Board concurred that lighting for the project should be included in the 
infrastructure budget.  Director Givens withdrew her original motion and the Board 
concurred to table this item, pending additional work to establish a budget, acquire 
easements and reach an agreement for future maintenance by the Memorial City 
Management District.   
 
 Mr. Huml reviewed a Work Order No. 3 from SWA Group for conceptual design 
for Lumpkin North of Westview and the Westview Detention Basin Greenway. He 
noted the Work Order is for a fixed fee of $15,000, with $5,000 allocated to the Lumpkin 
Road Improvement Project and $10,000 allocated to the Westview Detention Basin 
Greenway.  Following discussion and review, Director Givens moved to approve Work 
Order No. 3 of SWA Group.  Director Freels seconded the motion, and it passed by 
unanimous vote.  
 
10. W140 Detention Basin Project 
 
 Mr. Ortega updated the Board regarding the Briar Branch detention basin 
package by L.N. McKean, Inc.  He reviewed and recommended payment of Pay 
Estimate No. 2 in the amount of $584,222.45 and Pay Estimate No. 3 in the amount of 
$211,475.91. Following review and discussion and based upon the engineer’s 
recommendation, upon a motion made by Director Freels and seconded by Director 
Hamilton, the Board voted unanimously to approve Pay Estimate No. 2 in the amount 
of $584,222.45 and Pay Estimate No. 3 in the amount of $211,475.91 to L.N. McKean, Inc.  
 
11.  Barryknoll East Improvement Project 
 
 Mr. Ortega updated the Board on the Barryknoll East Roadway and Drainage 
Improvement Project by Texas Sterling Construction Co. (“Texas Sterling”).  He 
reviewed and recommended payment of Pay Estimate No. 7 in the amount of 
$297,832.33.  Following discussion and review and based upon the engineer’s 
recommendation, Director Hamilton moved to approve Pay Estimate No. 7 in the 

Page 3



amount of $297,832.33 to Texas Sterling.  The motion was seconded by Director Airola 
and carried unanimously.    
 
12.  Executive Director’s Report 
 
 Mr. Huml reported regarding his work for the Authority during November and 
reviewed a schedule of projects in progress.  
 
13. Convene in Executive Session Pursuant to Section 551.072, Texas Government 

Code, to Deliberate the Purchase, Exchange, Lease or Value of Real Property  
 

At 8:47 a.m., Mr. Huml announced the Board will meet in executive session to 
deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property. 

 
14. Convene in Open Session and Authorize Appropriate Action Regarding the 

Purchase, Exchange, Lease or Value of Real Property 
 
 At 9:56 a.m., the Board reconvened in open session.  Upon reconvening in open 
session, Director Airola moved to authorize offers to purchase four certain tracts of real 
property.  Director Rickel seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.   
 
15.  Agreement for CIP 1735 Detention Basin for Professional Legal Consulting 

Services 
 
 The Board reviewed an engagement letter from Andrews Kurth LLP for legal 
consulting services.  After review and discussion, Director Airola moved to approve the 
engagement letter with Andrews Kurth LLP.  Director Rickel seconded the motion, 
which carried unanimously. 
 
16. Adjournment 

 
There being no additional matters for the Board’s consideration, the meeting was 

adjourned. 

Approved: 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
TIRZ 17 Redevelopment Authority/Memorial City Redevelopment Authority 
City of Houston, Texas 

Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



ALLEN BOONE HUMPHRIES ROBINSON LLP 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 


PHOENIX TOWER 
3200 SOUTHWEST FREEWAY 

SUITE 2600 
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77027 

TEL (713) 860·6400 
FAX (713) 860·6401 

abhr.com 

Direct Line: (713) 860-6491 Jessica Holoubek 
Direct Fax: (713) 860-6691 jholoubek@abhr.com Senior Attorney 

January 28, 2014 

Spring Branch Management District 
cj 0 Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 
Houston, Texas 77227-2167 
Attn: Mr. David Hawes, Executive Director 

Re: 	 Maintenance of Westview Roadway Esplanade between Shadowdale and 
Beltway 8 

Dear Mr. Hawes: 

The TIRZ 17 Redevelopment Authority (aka Memorial City Redevelopment Authority) 
(the IIAuthority) and Spring Branch Management District (the "District") previously entered 
into a letter agreement dated March 9, 2009, which was executed and agreed to by the District 
on March 19, 2009 (the "Letter Agreement"), for the District to maintain certain landscaping 
improvements and embellishments constructed by the Authority at the Westview roadway 
esplanade medians (the "Improvements"). A copy of the Letter Agreement is attached hereto 
for reference. 

At its meeting on January 28, 2014, the Authority was informed that Harris County 
Municipal Management District No.1 (aka the Memorial City Management District) has agreed 
to assume maintenance of the Improvements. Therefore, the Board of Directors of the 
Authority voted to terminate the Letter Agreement with the District. Please accept this letter as 
notice of termination of the Letter Agreement and proceed with causing the District's 
Maintenance Agreement with the City of Houston to be amended to exclude the Improvements 
as soon as reasonably possible. Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Should you have any questions, please call me at (713) 860-6491. 

Sincerely, 

Jessica Holoubek 
Attorney for the Authority 

Enclosure 

469545 

Page 57

mailto:jholoubek@abhr.com
http:abhr.com


• 
nRZ 11 

,. ,._- -. _._-,-- - ..... 

RfDrVELOPMCN[_._._... --- _. ~. ~.--

AUIHORlrf 

March 9, 2009 

Spring Branch Management District 
c/o Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston, Texas 77227-'1:167 

Attn. Mr. David Hawes, Executive Director 


Re: Maintenance of Westview Roadway Esplanade between Shadowdale and Beltway 8 

Dear Mr. Hawes: 

The TIRZ 17 Redevelopment Authority (aka Memorial City Redevelopment Authority) (the 
"Authority") has awarded a contract for the design of certain landscaping improvements and 
embellishments to be located at the Westview roadway esplanade medians (the "Improvements") as 
more fully described in the attached Exhibit A. The purpose of this letter agreement is to set forth the 
parties agreement regarding installation and maintenance of Improvements. 

The Authority hereby agrees to cause the Improvements to be designed, constructed and 
installed, at its sole cost and expense, substantially in accordance with Spring Branch Management 
District's (the "District" or "you") master plan for landscaping improvements. 

In consideration for the Authority's 'design, construction and installation of the Improvements, 
the District hereby agrees to assume full responsibility, at its sole cost and expense, for the operation, 
maintenance, repair and replacement of the Improvements to the extent and in the same manner as is 
requ~ed by the City of Houston, Texas (the "City") for other like facilities located within the Districfs 
service area. Upon completion of the construction and installation of the Improvements, it is specifically 
agreed that the Authority shall have no responsibility for the condition or maintenance of the 
Improvements and that the District shall pay all costs related to the operation, maintenance, and repair of 
the Improvements. The District further agrees that it will cause its Maintenance Agreement with the City 
to be amended to include the Improvements within 30 days of completion of the construction and 

, installation of the Improvements. 

If the District fails to maintain or repair the Improvements, the Authority or its assigns shaH have 
the right, but not the obligation, in its sole discretion, to alter, reduce, replace or authorize other changes 
to the Improvements; provided, however, that the Authority shall first notify the District in writing of 
any Improvements that the Authority believes the District has failed to maintain, repair, or replace, and 
give the District 60 days to cure any such failure. 

If you are in agreement with the above terms and conditions, and agree that this letter agreement 
is the entire agreement between the parties related to the Improvements, please execute the 
acknowledgment below and return one fully executed original to the undersigned so that construction 
and installation of the Improvements may begin. 

We look forward to working with you on this project. 

ffW-984.8737 Main· 713.984.0432 Fax· 820 Gessner. Suite 1530· Houston.TX n024 

Page 58

http:Houston.TX


Sincerely, 

TIRZ 17 REDEVELOPMENT AUfHORITY 
(AKA MEMORIAL CITY REDEVELOPMENT 
AUnIORITY) . 

¥By, rtt&T~~' 
Chair, Board of Directors 

226837.doc 

Page 59



The above terms an~itions concerning the maintenance of Westview Road Esplanade are 
accepted and agreed to this day of /Jt..tt/TCA./ . 2009. 

SPRING BRANCH MANAGEMENT DISI'RICf 

r{7u~ 
Name: fk.Jr;~-i.~ Madd'('J< 

Title: e.k~ ,i....,.. 

226837.doc 

Page 60



e 
MEDIAN f'LANTltJG Pi.AN 

~ 
~ 

125 •Zone of landscape Development 

e 


MElt\N f>LA~rnt~G f.t..i!TiAt. I'l';~J V'E'W 

Spring Branch Master Plan 
Spring Branch ManaS)ement District M",.·h(h>, «lOE ~ . '"'CIm 

!U >f 
(Q:7
CD§:......... 

g> 
c.n 

Page 61



Memorial City anagement District Westview Medians - Estimate of Proba osts 

2.!·J7in-;!UO~ 

Kudel.l & WClnhCllnCf .l;;1ndsC3pr: Architecl£. 

ITEM QTY UNIT UNIT COST ITEM TOTAL REMARKS 
1~1cn,HO~ 

Softsc8De Atea 
Native/Existing Trees 
Street Trees 
Ornamental Trees 
Shrubs/Groundcover 
Mulch 
Sod 
Irrigation 

t: 
~ 

8380 
32 
74 

10,150 
126 

23,370 
29,640 

sflapprox. 

ea 

ea 


sf/approx. 

cy/approx. 

sflapprox. 

sf/approx. 


$3.50 
$350.00 
$350.00 

$3.75 
$30.00 
$0.25 
$1.00 

Subtotal 

Softscape Total 
Contingency 20% 

Grand Total 

$29,330.00 
$11,200.00 
$25,900.00 
$38,062.50 

$3,780.00 
$5,842.50 

$29,640.00 

$143,766.00 

$143,766.00 
$28,761.00 

$172,606.00 

Mix 30 Gal., 15 Gat, 5 Gal. Wax MyrUes, Pines 
45 Gal. Nullal Oaks 
45 Gal. Crape Myrtles 
5 gal. & 1 gal. 
4" Thick Mulch 
Solid Sod Bermuda 
Automatic System 

e 


e 


;;?~
CC:::r 
!DC;: 
1\);::;: 

0): -
01 

Page 62

http:172,606.00
http:28,761.00
http:143,766.00
http:143,766.00
http:29,640.00
http:5,842.50
http:3,780.00
http:38,062.50
http:25,900.00
http:11,200.00
http:29,330.00


Exhibit A 
Page 3 of5 

, 

Page 63



Exhibit A 
Page 4 of5 

Page 64



Exhibit A 
Page 5 of5 

Page 65



RHTs301.A
Options - Conceptual Cost Estimates 
Lumpkin Road Improvements (I-10 Frontage Road to Northbrook)

TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET :: $8,688,000.

LANDSCAPE + HARDSCAPE

OPTION 1 - HIGH LEVEL AMENITIES 424,702$  0.05 77,000$      0.01 (85,400.00)$      (127,890.00)$    288,412    0.033

OPTION 2 - MID LEVEL AMENITIES 339,102$  0.04 77,000$      0.01 (85,400.00)$      (127,890.00)$    202,812    0.023

OPTION 3 -  LOW LEVEL AMENITIES 274,902$  0.03 77,000$      0.01 (85,400.00)$      (127,890.00)$    138,612    0.016

Notes: *     Non-amenity base project landscaping is a cost deduction as it is required by city ordinance.

**  Possible HCC land contribution - 1,600SF @ $30 / SF for seating area + 2,600SF @ $30 / SF for road ROW.

See attached exhibit showing Options 1 - 3 for the amenities.

PEDESTRIAN LIGHTING

OPTION A - HIGH LEVEL ILLUMINATION 490,060$  0.056

OPTION B - MID LEVEL ILLUMINATION 413,555$  0.048

OPTION C -  LOW LEVEL ILLUMINATION 337,050$  0.039

Note: See attached exhibit showing Options A - C for the lighting.

Pedestrian lighting on west side of Lumpkin only from I-10 to Westview on a 65' spacing.

28-Jan-14

TOTAL 
AMENITIES 

% of 
Project

LIGHTING % of 
Project

HARDSCAPE 
AMENITIES

% of 
Project

% of 
Project

LANDSCAPE 
AMENITIES

DEDUCT FOR 
REQUIRED BASE 

PROJECT 
LANDSCAPING*

SUMMARY

Continuous line of Live Oak street trees (45gal.) on east side of street with no understory of shrubs to screen Home Depot / industrial properties; 
continous flowering trees (45 gal.) on the west side under CenterPoint powerlines provide some shade for HCC students; planted esplanades at I-
10 frontage road and Westview; MCMD accent paving in sidewalks on both sides of Lumpkin; planted esplanades at I-10 frontage road and 
Westview; outdoor gathering space for HCC students with benches, bike racks, trash cans and landscaping. 

DEDUCT FOR HCC 
LAND 

CONTRIBUTION 
(Estimated)**

Continuous line of Live Oak street trees (65gal.) on east side of street with an understory of shrubs to screen Home Depot / industrial properties; 
continous flowering trees (45 gal.) on the west side under CenterPoint powerlines provide some shade for HCC students; planted esplanades at I-
10 frontage road and at Westview; MCMD accent paving in sidewalks on both sides of Lumpkin; planted esplanades at I-10 frontage road and 
Westview; outdoor gathering space for HCC students with benches, bike racks, trash cans and landscaping. 

Continuous line of Live Oak street trees (65gal.) on east side of street with a reduced understory of shrubs to screen Home Depot / industrial 
properties; continous flowering trees (45 gal.) on the west side under CenterPoint powerlines provide some shade for HCC students; planted 
esplanades at I-10 frontage road and at Westview; MCMD accent paving in sidewalks on both sides of Lumpkin; planted esplanades at I-10 
frontage road and Westview; outdoor gathering space for HCC students with benches, bike racks, trash cans and landscaping. 

Pedestrian lighting on west side of Lumpkin only from I-10 to Northbrook on a 50' spacing.

Pedestrian lighting on west side of Lumpkin only from I-10 to Northbrook on a 65' spacing.

Page 66



TIRZ 17
Lumpk in Road Enhancements

LUMPKIN ROAD LOCATION PLAN
28 JAN.  2014

B
E

LT
W

A
Y

 8

I - 1 0  I N T E R S TAT E

L
U

M
P

K
IN

 R
D

N O R T H B R O O K  D R N

TYPICAL ROADWAY SECTION WITH MEDIAN

SEATING AREA AT HOUSTON COMMUNITY 
COLLEGE

TYPICAL ROADWAY SECTION WITH MEDIAN

TYPICAL ROADWAY SECTION WITH TURN LANE

TYPICAL ROADWAY SECTION WITH 
TURNING LANE

Page 67



3

HCC/
Condition
Varies

HCC/
Condition
Varies

HCC/
Condition
Varies

OPTION 

2OPTION 

1OPTION High-level Amenities

Mid-level Amenities

Low-Level Amenities

 DRAWING NOT TO SCALE

TIRZ 17
Lumpk in Road Enhancements

LUMPKIN RD AMENITIES SEC TIONS
OPTIONS 1-3
28 JAN.  2014

Home 
Depot/
Condition
Varies

Home 
Depot/
Condition
Varies

Home 
Depot/
Condition
Varies

65 GAL
LOW FLOWERING TREE

HCC
GATHERING AREA

HCC
GATHERING AREA

HCC
GATHERING AREA

LOW FLOWERING TREE

SIDEWALK

SIDEWALK

SIDEWALK SIDEWALK

SIDEWALK

SIDEWALK

LOW FLOWERING TREE

ADOPT-AN-ESPLANADE

ADOPT-AN-ESPLANADE

ADOPT-AN-ESPLANADE

6000 SF
VEGETATION
BUFFER

2000 SF
VEGETATION 
BUFFER

65 GAL

45 GAL

NO BUFFER

Page 68



TIRZ 17
Lumpk in Road Enhancements

LUMPKIN RD LIGHTING PLAN
OPTIONS A- C
28 JAN.  2014

C

No Pedestrian Lighting 
on the East side of Lumpkin St.

No Pedestrian Lighting 
on the East side of Lumpkin St.

No Pedestrian Lighting 
on the East side of Lumpkin St.

No Pedestrian Lighting on East side of Lumpkin St.

No Pedestrian Lighting on East side of Lumpkin St.

No Pedestrian Lighting in this Section 

No Pedestrian Lighting in this Section 

Low-level IlluminationOPTION 

50’ O.C.

65’ O.C.

65’ O.C.

B Mid-Level IlluminationOPTION 

AOPTION High-Level Illumination

I-
1

0
 I

N
T

E
R

S
T

A
T

E
I-

1
0

 I
N

T
E

R
S

T
A

T
E

W
E

S
T

V
IE

W

N
O

R
T

H
B

R
O

O
K

N
O

R
T

H
B

R
O

O
K

N
O

R
T

H
B

R
O

O
K

W
E

S
T

V
IE

W
W

E
S

T
V

IE
W

I-
1

0
 I

N
T

E
R

S
T

A
T

E

Page 69



28  January, 2014    WORK ORDER #4 

 

Mr. Don Huml 

Executive Director 

Memorial City Redevelopment Authority 

8955 Katy Freeway, Suite 215 

Houston, TX 77024 

 

Subject:  Professional Design Services for Lumpkin Road Enhancements -  

  Detailed Design + Bidding Phase Services 

  (SWA Job# RHTs401) 

Dear Mr. Huml: 

SWA is pleased to submit this proposal for professional services which includes the preparation of detailed 

design drawings for constructing the landscape amenity portions of the Lumpkin Road Improvements (the 

“Project”) within the right-of-way and public access easement between Interstate 10 Frontage Road and 

Northbrook Road.  This Agreement is between Memorial City Redevelopment Authority (Client), and the 

Houston office of SWA Group (SWA) in reference to the Project located in Houston, Harris County, Texas.  

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Building upon prior, conceptual design services conducted by SWA for the Lumpkin Road Improvements 

from Interstate 10 Frontage to Westview Drive, the following key components constitute the landscape 

amenity portion of the Project: 

• street trees  

• irrigation  

• sidewalk accent paving  

• student seating area with benches, trash can, bike rack, planting and irrigation 

• esplanade planting and irrigation at I-10 and Westview (south side and north side of intersection) 

• pedestrian lighting 

• METRO transit shelter at Westview 

SWA will perform the following professional services for this portion of the Project: 

 

Page 70



A. Preliminary Design 

1. Review comments and direction received from the Board of Directors for the Zone at its 28 

January 2014 meeting. Accordingly, make necessary adjustments to the conceptual design 

including scope and costs.  

2. Develop sheet layout and related details to mobilize the sub-consultants for irrigation and 

power. 

 3.      Prepare application for and coordinate Adopt-An-Esplanade with City of Houston. 

Deliverables   

- Input to Final Design. 

- Adopt-An-Esplanade application (2) / coordination. 

- Two (2) in-person coordination meetings: one with Client and one with the engineer.  

- Maximum  of one (1)  round of revisions. 

B. Final Design 

1. Prepare final design documents for constructing the proposed project amenities. 

2. Prepare a 90% and 100% submittal of the final design documents. 

3. Prepare the application for the Adopt-An-Esplanade for the I-10 / Lumpkin esplanade and the 

Lumpkin / Westview Esplanade. The esplanades north of Westview will be handled by others or 

will be paved and not planted, as decided by the Client. 

4. Prepare technical sections of specifications in Construction Specifications Institute (CSI) Master 

Format to reasonably conform to applicable codes and regulations of governmental bodies having 

jurisdiction over the work at the time of preparation. Specifications will conform the City of 

Houston's requirements. 

5.  Client shall be responsible for Bidding and Contract Requirements and General Requirements 

divisions of the specifications. 

6. SWA shall use its best efforts to coordinate its services with those of other consultants and to 

maintain a construction budget in accordance with the design development estimate of probable 

construction cost accepted by Client at the end of the design phase.   

7. Prepare a final cost estimation at the 90% submittal. When the final estimate of probable 

construction cost is one hundred ten percent (110%) of the preliminary design budget estimate, or 

less, the final estimate will be acceptable to Client. 

8. Complete Adopt-An-Esplanade procedures for approval of the three (3) esplanades. 

Page 71



Deliverables 

- 90% plan set of construction documents. 

- Technical Specifications in CSI Master Format, which will conform to the City of Houston's    

   requirements. 

- 100% plan set of construction documents. 

- Final Estimate of Project Cost. 

- Adopt-An-Esplanade approval. 

- One electronic copy and one hard copy of the plan set and technical specifications. 

- Two (2) in-person coordination meetings: one with  Client and one with the engineer.  

- Maximum of one (1)  round of revisions. 

Sub-Consultants 

SWA will retain the services of an electrical engineer for powering the pedestrian lights and bus shelter, 

a structural engineer for light pole and bus stop foundations  and of an irrigation consultant for the 

irrigation for the planting. Said services are included in the Scope of Services and fees. 

C. Bidding Phase 

SWA and its sub-consultants shall respond to questions from prospective bidders on the landscape 

portion of the Project, prepare addenda during the bidding period and assist Client and Client's 

Engineer in reviewing bids received by the Client.   

II. DEVELOPMENT BUDGETS 

A. Based upon the current level of information on the project, and our understanding of the present 

concept, we estimate that the approximate budget for construction of items under the above scope of 

services may range between $600,000. - $900,000. The fee range quoted in this proposal is based upon 

our understanding of the present concept and this budgetary figure. 

B. In the event that this development budget is reduced or increased by more than 10% between the time 

of approval of the landscape concept phase and the time of award of a construction contract, cost of 

modification of drawings and specifications to meet the changed project budget shall be considered 

Additional Services. 

III. DESIGN APPROVAL 

Mr. Don Huml, Executive Director, Memorial City Redevelopment Authority, has been designated as the 

person responsible for design direction to SWA for this project and has the authority for design approval.  In 

the event that the design, as approved by Mr. Huml is rejected by others, and re-design is required, such re-

design services shall be compensated as Additional Services.  

Page 72



IV. MEETINGS AND SITE VISITS 

This proposal includes Professional Service time for up to four meetings for coordination with Client, 

agencies, consultants or Owner and scheduled approximately as follows: 

Preliminary Design Phase 2 meetings 

Final Design  Phase  2 meeting 

Pre-Bid    1 meeting 

 (Additional meetings shall be billed as Additional Services).   

V. SCHEDULE 

 The scope of services will be complete within forty-five (45) to sixty (60) days. If the schedule exceeds ninety 

 days for reasons beyond SWA's control, work performed thereafter will be an additional service. 

VI. EXCLUSIONS TO SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Client shall provide the following information or services as required for performance of the work.  SWA 

assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of such information or services and shall not be liable for error or 

omissions therein.  Should SWA be required to provide services in obtaining or coordinating compilation of 

this information, such services shall be charged as Additional Services. 

A. Topography and boundary surveys. 

B. Legal descriptions of property. 

C. Soils testing and/or engineering. 

D. Existing site engineering and utility base information. 

E. Overhead aerial photographs at controlled scale. 

F. Engineering other than that provided within the Scope of Services. 

G. Permitting services. 

H. Permit and application fees, including but not limited to Adopt-An-Esplanade and TDLR. 

I.  Additional Adopt-An-Esplanade application for esplanade at Northwood. 

J. Construction Phase services.  

 

 

 

Page 73



VII. FEES  

Professional Services for SWA shall be a fixed fee of $72,450. of which $41,450 will be sub-contracted. SWA 

will provide the scope of services without further written authorization.  SWA's fees are estimated in the 

following fee breakdown by phase: 

Task  Fee  

Preliminary Design $ 18,850.  

Final Design 

Bidding                                                                                                                                                

$49,350. 

$  4,250. 

 

Fee Total $72,450.  

Reimbursable expenses shall be included in the fees stated above for local travel and copying / reproduction in 

the indicated quantities.  SWA will provide one (1) electronic copy and one (1) mylar copy of the final documents 

for constructing the landscape portion of the project.  Additional printing will be provided as an additional 

service and billed as a reimbursable expense.  

VII.   TERMS 

  Terms and conditions of service shall be in accordance with the Service Agreement by and between the  

  Authority and SWA dated August 27, 2013.  

 If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign below and return one copy for our files. 

Sincerely yours, 

SWA GROUP 

 

 

James Vick, AIA    

Principal 

   

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Page 74



 

 

ACCEPTED BY: 

Memorial City Redevelopment Authority 

 

By: ________________________________________________ 

 

Title: ________________________________________________ 

 

Date: ________________________________________________ 

 

 

City of Houston 

 

By: ________________________________________________ 

 

Title: ________________________________________________ 

 

Date: ________________________________________________ 

Proposal copyright ©2012 by SWA Group. No portion of this proposal may be copied or distributed to without 

the written permission of SWA Group. 

 

 

End 

Page 75



 

P.O. Box 771294  •  Houston, Texas 77215  •  713-780-9554 
Engineering & Environmental Consultants 

HUNT & HUNT ENGINEERING CORP. 
 

  

 
January 15, 2014 
 
Mr. James Vick, AIA 
SWA Group 
1245 West 18th Street 
Houston, Texas 77008-3342 
 
Reference: TIRZ 17 
   Lumpkin Road Enhancements 
  From IH-10 to Northbrook Drive 
 
Subject: Proposal for Electrical and Structural Design Services 
 
Dear Mr. Vick: 
 
Pursuant to your request, I have prepared the following proposal to assist SWA Group (SWA) 
with the design phase services for the referenced project.  It is my understanding that the project 
will include approximately 3,500 linear feet of roadway improvements and will include 
pedestrian lighting, power for irrigation controllers and a METRO bus shelter.  Proposed light 
fixtures will be a BEGA 8145MH fixture, which is the Memorial City Area Standard.  Fixtures 
will be placed along the west right-of-way Lumpkin Road from the IH-10 feeder to Northbrook 
Drive and will be placed on approximately 50’ centers.  Structural engineering will be provided 
for the pedestrian light pole and bus shelter foundations.  SWA will provide overall project 
coordination and base drawings for the electrical and structural design.  Our scope of work will 
include the following: 
 
PROJECT SCOPE: 
 
Our project scope will include detailed electrical and structural engineering design to develop 
construction documents for pedestrian lighting along Lumpkin Road and a bus shelter on the 
southwest corner of Lumpkin Road and Westview Drive.  Detailed drawings will include plans, 
conduit routing and details required for CenterPoint Energy approval and City of Houston 
permitting.  Our base scope of services will include coordinating design activities with 
CenterPoint Energy. 
 
DESIGN SERVICES: 
 
1. Design Phase Services will include: 

A. Review existing documents and conduct preliminary field investigations. 
B. Establish the general character of all principal features of the electrical system and 

foundations. 

Page 76



Mr. James Vick, AIA 
January 15, 2014 
Page 2 

C. Participate in conferences with Engineer/Landscape Architect/Owner (Owner’s 
Representative) and other interested parties as required to finalize preliminary planning of 
the project. 

D. Prepare contract drawings for the electrical system and foundations, based upon the 
approved scope of work. 

E. Provide 90% & 100% Submittal for review and Final Documents.  
F. Detailed technical specifications will be provided on the contract drawings. 

2. Bid and Approvals Phase Services will include: 
A. Assist in preparing addenda affecting the electrical system and foundations.   
B. Assist with City of Houston and CenterPoint Energy approvals. 

3. Construction Administration Phase Services are excluded and will be provided as an 
additional service when required: 
A. Review and evaluation of submittals and/or shop drawings related to electrical and 

structural components of work. 
B. Provide one (1) on-site inspection at appropriate time to observe the progress of the 

executed work of the contractor and to determine, in general, if such work is proceeding 
in accordance with Contract Documents. 

C. Respond to RFI’s that may arise during construction and provide clarifications and 
interpretation of Construction Documents, as necessary. 

 
COMPENSATION: 
 
1. Design Services: 

Our estimated lump sum fee for the services as described above is $ 38,700.00 and will be 
billed as shown below:  
 Construction Documents  $37,750.00 
 Bid Phase Services          950.00 
 Total:     $38,700.00 

2. Cost Basis: 
The current scope definition was used as the basis of fee calculations.   An increase in the 
scope may result in a corresponding adjustment in the proposed fee. 

3. Reimbursable Expenses: 
Reimbursable expenses will be billed at our cost. 

 
BILLINGS: 
 
Billings for services will be on a monthly basis computed using the level of completion of the 
design services provided.  Reimbursable expenses will also be billed on a monthly basis.  
Invoices are due within ten (10) days of payment by Owner. 
 
 
 
 

Page 77



Mr. James Vick, AIA 
January 15, 2014 
Page 3 

SCOPE CHANGES: 
 
We will, without extra charge, make all revisions in the preliminary work phase necessary to 
conform to changes in the project scope and planning.  But, after the scope has been approved 
and drawings substantially advanced, if changes are required from causes not within our control 
and which clearly involve additional work and expense; additional compensation will be required 
for such extra work. 
 
EXCLUSIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS: 
 
1. The following exclusions and clarifications are offered: 

A. Design will be in accordance with applicable City of Houston Codes and any guidelines 
provided by the Landscape Architect/Owner. 

B. This design does not include 120V receptacle power or landscape amenities along 
Lumpkin Road, other than those stated above. 

C. This proposal assumes that the overhead electrical service along Lumpkin Road will 
remain. 

D. Cable design for special sound or security and similar systems is excluded. 
E. Owner will select the bus shelter and provide all information essential to the electrical 

and structural design. 
F. All necessary geotechnical and topographic survey information will be provided by 

others. 
G. This proposal does not include a hydraulic impact analysis and drainage design has been 

excluded. 
 
Please advise if you have questions or require additional information.  I appreciate the 
opportunity to submit this proposal and look forward to working with you. 
 
Sincerely,       
 
 
 
Larry Hunt, P.E. 
President             
 
LH/ath 
A:\SwA_Lumpkin.pro 

 

Page 78



 

Lumpkin Road TIRZ 17 – p02                  Page 1 of 2 

January 16, 2014 

This is an agreement for services to be performed, upon receipt by the consultant of signed agreement, one fully 
executed copy will be returned to the client.  Should any of the information shown herein not be in accordance with 
the client's understanding, the client should immediately advise the consultant. 

Client: SWA Group  Project:  Lumpkin Road TIRZ 17 
   Description: Houston, Texas 

Client 1245 West 18th Street  Client's Job No.:  
Address: Houston, TX 77008-3342 

Telephone: (713) 868-1676  Attention:  Amy Harbert 
Facsimile: (713) 868-7409  E-mail address:  aharbert@swagroup.com 

The client and the consultant for mutual consideration herein set forth, and agree as follows: 

A. Consultant agrees to perform the following services: 

Provide irrigation consulting and design services for the above referenced project.  The project is the design 
of a landscape irrigation system for streetscape planting in Houston, Texas. The project shall be designed 
using AutoCAD drafting software on no more than two (2) sheets of drawings at 1" = 20' scale.  The client shall 
provide all digital base information including base sheets, planting plans, grading plans, utility plans and title 
blocks with planting sheet set-ups.  The client shall provide an e-transmit of the AutoCAD drawings so as to 
include all required x-reference drawings, image files and plotting ctb files.  Additional submittals (other than 
direct municipal agency irrigation plan check revisions) and other design phases (design development, 
schematic design, permitting sets, etc.) are excluded from this scope of work and fee proposal. 

This scope of work and fees is based on a preliminary site plan provided by the client on January 13, 2014 via 
email.  The fee assumes that there are no "over structure" planting areas or green roofs to be irrigated in the 
scope of work.  The fee also assumes that there will not be any pump station design required for the project.  
The scope of work shall be defined as the following: 

Construction Documents - The consultant shall provide complete drip and overhead spray irrigation 
construction drawings including plans, notes, materials legends, installation details, water pressure 
calculations, peak irrigation run time calculations and specifications.  The irrigation drawings shall be in 
compliance with the local agency's irrigation standards and focus on the efficient use of water by the 
landscape proposed for the project.  The fee assumes that there will be one (1) substantial submittal (90%) 
and one (1) final submittal (100%) of the construction document irrigation drawings.  The irrigation 
deliverables shall include AutoCAD drawing files (using AutoCAD e-transmit), PDF plots of the drawings and 
specifications in book form as a Word document in CSI format. 

Revision Allowance - The consultant shall revise the irrigation drawings as necessary (due to base changes 
or planting plan revisions) and re-plot submitted drawings (due to title block updates, base updates, etc.) as 
requested and bill hourly against the provided revision allowance.  If substantial revisions are required, 
beyond what can be covered with the revisions allowance, the consultant reserves the right to negotiate a fee 
for the revisions. 
 
Construction Administration - The consult shall provide construction administration services in the form of 
the review and written comments on contractor materials submittals and answering RFIs. 

 
B. Client agrees to compensate the consultant as follows: 

Construction Documents:  $ 2,450.00 Two thousand four hundred fifty dollars 
Construction Administration:  $ 700.00 Seven hundred dollars  
Revision Allowance:  $ 300.00 Three hundred dollars (Optional) 
 
Payment terms: net 30 days. 

 
 

Page 79



 

Lumpkin Road TIRZ 17 – p02                  Page 2 of 2 

 
C. Hourly rates as follows: Principal - $130.00 per hour, Irrigation Designer - $85.00 per hour 
 Project Manager - $110.00 per hour AutoCAD Draftsperson - $65.00 per hour 

D. Conceptual design plans, design development plans, schematic design plans, master meter plans, revisions 
(other than direct municipal agency irrigation plan check and over the amount of the revision allowance); 
over structure designs; green roof designs; pump station designs; meetings with the client, city or owner; 
construction observations; water auditing services; and irrigation schedules are not included in this scope of 
work and fee proposal and will not be provided.  If these services are requested by the client, the consultant 
shall prepare a fee proposal for said services and proceed with the work only after written acceptance of the 
fee proposal.  This scope and fee proposal does not include the design of water storage tanks, rain harvesting 
systems or other alternative water systems, or pump stations.  The scope and fees specifically exclude the 
design of infrastructure components.   

 The consultant reserves the right to revise this proposal to accommodate the time and expense of the project 
design package being prepared on additional drawing sheets (not counting legends, details and calculation 
sheets) above what is described above in part A.  It is the client's responsibility to provide all necessary 
digital base information files, as described above in Part A, prior to the submittal of the irrigation drawings.  
The client shall provide all required title block information required for the submittal prior to the submittal of 
the drawings.  Any additional plotting of the drawings based on the client's failure to provide this information 
prior to the submittal, or simply due to changes in the required information, shall be billed as revision time 
against the revision allowance. 

E. Consultant shall maintain in force insurance in the following amounts: $2,000,000 – General Liability; 
$2,000,000 - Professional Liability; $1,000,000 Commercial Automobile; and Worker’s Compensation in the 
amounts required by state law.  Each party agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the other free and harmless 
from and against any and all losses, claims, demands, damages or judgments of or in favor of any third party 
arising from any act by, or negligence of, the indemnitor or its officers, agents or employees while engaged in 
the performance of this contract or while in or about the premises for any reason connected in any way with 
the performance of this contract. 

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have accepted, made and executed this agreement upon the terms, conditions 
and provisions above stated. 

SWA Group       Sweeney & Associates, Inc. 

By:         By:       

Name:         Name:       Ted Kochanek LI# 20439  

Title:         Title:   Principal   

Date:         Date:   1/16/14    

 
Irrigation in Texas is regulated by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Landscape Irrigation Program, MC-178, P.O. Box 13087, Austin, Texas 78711-3087 
TCEQ's web site is: http://www.tceq.state.tx.us/ 

Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



RIGHT OF ENTRY AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

MEMORIAL CITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
AND 

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY  OF  HARRIS  § 
 
 This Right of Entry and Maintenance Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and 
entered into as of the ___ day of _________, 2014, by and between Memorial City 
Redevelopment Authority (the “Authority”), a not for profit local government 
corporation, and Houston Community College (the “College”), a ____________. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS,  the Authority desires to acquire from the College a right of entry for 
construction purposes, over, upon, and across that certain property (the “Property”) 
being situated in the County of Harris, State of Texas, as more particularly shown on 
Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, in furtherance of the 
Authority’s construction and installation of certain improvements (the “Improvements”) 
more particularly shown on Exhibit B; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is mutually agreeable to the Authority and the College, that the 
Authority and/or its designated agents and construction contractors, shall have the right 
to enter upon the aforesaid Property for the above-stated purpose; 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Authority and of the College each hereby 
finds that the Improvements, including certain landscaping, hardscaping and access 
improvements,  are necessary and desirable to enhance the beneficial use of the Property 
for public recreational and access purposes; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority and College have agreed that the College shall operate 
and maintain the Property, including any and all improvements thereto, including the 
Improvements, as set forth herein. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 Now therefore, for and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, 
benefits, and obligations herein set forth, the Authority and the College hereby agree and 
contract as follows: 

Page 83



 
 Section 1. Construction of Improvements.   The College hereby grants the 
Authority, and/or any of its designated agents and construction contractors,  the right 
enter onto, over and across the Property  to construct and install, at the Authority’s sole 
expense, the landscaping, hardscaping and other access improvements more fully 
identified on Exhibit B attached hereto (the “Improvements”).  The Authority shall be 
solely responsible for entering into and administering the contract for construction of the 
Improvements.  Upon completion of the Improvements, the College will assume 
responsibility for operation and maintenance of the Improvements and the Property as 
described herein.  
 

Section 2. Conveyance of Easement.  The College agrees to execute a public 
easement in favor of the City of Houston, Texas, over the Property, the form and 
substance of which are acceptable to the City of Houston, Texas.   

 
Section 3. Maintenance.  Upon completion of construction of the 

Improvements, the College shall have the right, responsibility and obligation for the 
operation and maintenance of the Improvements and shall manage the grounds-keeping 
and landscaping maintenance needed on the Property.  The Property shall remain open 
to the public.  The scope of the College’s operation and maintenance responsibilities 
include the following: 

 
a. operating and maintaining the Improvements in good repair and in a 

safe manner; 
 
b. maintaining, replacing and repairing any hardscaping, lighting, 

landscaping, trees or irrigation on the Property;  
 
c. mowing, cleaning, and other work needed to maintain and control 

vegetation and/or landscaping in and around the Property to Houston 
area community standards; and 

 
d. any other maintenance, repairs, improvements or other work the 

College, in its sole discretion, deems necessary to maintain the Property 
and Improvements in a safe and productive manner. 

 
It is specifically agreed that neither the Authority, nor the City of Houston, Texas, 

will have no responsibility for the condition, operation, maintenance, repair or 
replacement of any of the Improvements.   

 
Section 4. Notice.  All notices shall be in writing and given by certified mail 

with return receipt requested, with receipt as of the date of the signed receipt.  Notice 
given in any other manner shall be effective only if and when received by the party to be 

Page 84



notified.  For the purpose of notice, the addresses of the parties shall, unless changed in 
writing, be as shown on the signature page of this Agreement.  The parties shall have the 
right to change their respective addresses and each shall have the right to specify their 
respective new addresses by at least 15 days written notice to the other party. 

 
Section 5.  Contractor Insurance.  The Authority will require any contractor 

obtaining access to Property by and through this Agreement to maintain insurance of the 
following types and minimum limits:   

 
A. Commercial General Liability Insurance with limits not less than:  

a. Each occurrence – $1,000,000 
b. General aggregate - $2,000,000 
c. Products-Completed Operations Aggregate - $2,000,000 
d. Personal & Advertising Injury -$1,000,000 

B. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance with limits not less than 
$1,000,000 (combined) 

C. Excess Liability: $2,000,000/$2,000,000 

All required insurance must add the College as an additional insured by 
endorsement.  The Authority will further cause its contractors to cause all required 
insurance policies, if necessary by endorsement, to waive any rights of subrogation 
against the Grantor. 

 
Section 6: College Insurance.  The College shall, at its sole expense, secure and 

keep current comprehensive general liability insurance coverage relating to the use of the 
Property and the Improvements in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 per person and 
$1,000,000 per occurrence.   
 
 Section 7:   INDEMNIFICATION.  UPON COMPLETION OF 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE IMPROVEMENTS, THE COLLEGE AGREES TO FULLY 
AND COMPLETELY INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE AUTHORITY AND THE CITY 
OF HOUSTON, TEXAS, HARMLESS FROM EVERY CLAIM, ACTUAL LOSS, 
DAMAGE, INJURY, COST, EXPENSE, JUDGMENT, OR LIABILITY SUSTAINED OR 
INCURRED BY OR BROUGHT AGAINST THE AUTHORITY, OF EVERY KIND OR 
CHARACTER WHATSOEVER, IN CONTRACT, TORT, OR OTHERWISE, DIRECT 
OR INDIRECT, INCLUDING INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL AND CONSEQUENTIAL 
DAMAGES, FOR BODILY INJURY, DEATH, PROPERTY DAMAGE, OR 
ECONOMIC LOSS IN CONNECTION WITH THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
IMPROVEMENTS OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS MAINTENANCE 
AGREEMENT.  THIS INDEMNITY IS INTENDED TO INCLUDE AND COVER, 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY ACT, OMISSION, NEGLIGENCE OR GROSS 
NEGLIGENCE OF THE AUTHORITY, THE COLLEGE, AND/OR ANY OF THEIR 
AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES. 
 

Page 85



 Section 8: No Third Party Benefit.  This Agreement shall be for the sole and 
exclusive benefit of the Authority and the College and shall not be construed to confer 
any benefit or right upon any customers, residents, or members of the Authority or the 
College, or on any other party. 
 
 Section 9: Assignment.  This Agreement is not assignable by any party hereto 
except with the prior written consent of the other party. 
 
 Section 10: Modification.  Except as provided in this Agreement, this Agreement 
shall be subject to change or modification only with the written mutual consent of the 
parties hereto.  
 
 Section 11: Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 
between the parties relative to the subject matter hereof.  There have been and are no 
agreements, covenants, representations, or warranties between the parties other than 
those expressly stated or provided for herein. 
 
 Section 12: Term and Effect of Termination.  This Agreement shall be in force for 
a period of 5 years beginning upon the effective date of set forth above in this Agreement.  
The term of this Agreement shall be automatically renewed for additional 1 year terms 
thereafter unless either party shall give written notice of termination to the other party at 
least 30 days prior to the termination of the initial term or any renewal term.  Upon 
termination of this agreement, the College shall be responsible, at its sole expense, for 
operation and maintenance of the Property and Improvements.  Section 7 shall survive 
termination. 
 
 Section 13: No Waiver Implied.  The failure of either party hereto to insist, in 
any one or more instances, upon performance of any terms, covenants or conditions of 
this Agreement, shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of the future 
performance of any such term, covenant or condition by the other party hereto, but the 
obligation of such other party with respect to such future performance shall continue in 
full force and effect. 
 
 Section 14: Injunction.  In addition to any other available remedies, the parties 
hereto shall have the right to injunctive relief in the event a party hereto violates any term 
of this Agreement.  
 

[EXECUTION PAGES FOLLOW] 
 

Page 86



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement in multiple 
copies, each of which shall be deemed an original as of the date and year first written 
above. 
 
 MEMORIAL CITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY 
 
 
              
      Chairman, Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Secretary, Board of Directors 
 
 
Address: c/o Allen, Boone & Humphries, LLP 
3200 Southwest Freeway, 26th Floor 
Houston, Texas  77027 
 
  

Page 87



 
HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE  
 
By:        
Name:        
Title:        
 

 
 
 
 

Page 88



Exhibit A 
The Property 

 
 

Page 89



Exhibit B 
 

The Improvements 
 

 

Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



 
Project Description
The Briar Branch drainage area covers a relatively flat region north of IH-10 and south of Neuens 
Road. The region has had a number of documented flood events. The areas located immediately 
north of Briar Branch and south of the Long Point Fault line that traverses this area have seen the 
greatest frequency of flooding.

TIRZ 17 undertook a Regional Drainage Study (RDS) of approximately 4,000 acres for the purpose 
of identifying regional solutions to existing drainage problems. The proposed basin is the first phase 
of planned improvements for the Briar Branch watershed. It will serve as mitigation for upstream 
channel improvements (Phase II) and storm sewer conveyance improvements (Phase III) in the 
immediate area of Briar Branch. The planned total volume of the detention basin is 44 ac-ft, of 
which approximately 40 ac-ft (89%) is dedicated for community flood damage reduction.

Briar Branch (W140-01-00)

Status Report January 2014

Project Location

The proposed regional 
detention site is located 
1300 feet east of Bunker 
Hill Road and on the 
south side of Briar 
Branch. The basin site 
is immediately adjacent 
to and east of a major 
shopping center located 
at the northeast corner 
of Bunker Hill Road and 
IH-10.

Stormwater Detention Basin ( Phase I & Phase II)
WBS No. T-17000-0011-6

N

Status Report
Not to scale

The final project as designed and constructed may vary 
from the depiction.

  Phase I - Utility Relocation Package

• Project completed.

  Phase II - Detention Basin Package

•  Continued basin excavation.

•  Installed rip-rap around sides and base of weir structure.

•  Installed east and south side 24” interceptor pipes, and south   
end 36” storm sewer.

•  Started pilot channel installation along east and north sides 
of basin

TIRZ 17 Mission Statement

The mission of the Tax 
Increment Reinvestment 
Zone #17 (TIRZ 17) 
is to enhance the 
redevelopment and 
economic growth within 
the TIRZ by targeting 
projects to improve 
drainage, mobility and 
the quality of life.

Page 105



Construction Schedule

Contact Information: Contractor:
Phase I: Reytec
1901 Hollister Rd.
Houston, TX 77080

Phase II: L. N. McKean, Inc.
PO Box 130250
The Woodlands, TX 77393

Construc  on Manager (CM):
Lockwood, Andrews, and Newnam, Inc. (LAN)
2925 Briarpark Dr.
Houston, TX 77042

Construction Phases Schedule Completion

Phase I - Utility Relocation Package 
- Public utilities relocated to accommodate the proposed Detention Basin.

August 2013

Phase II - Detention Basin Package 
- Construction of detention basin which involves soil excavation, site utility demolition/clearing and grubbing, construction of 
outfall structure, fi ne grading, installation of riprap, slope paving, construction of concrete pilot channels, and landscaping.
- Contract amount: $2,835,903.90

February 2014

Phase I
• Project Completed

Phase II
• Construction completion February 17, 2014.

Construction Time:

Payment Estimates (Phase I)
Original contract amount $329,821.05
Change order amount to date ($13,472.78)

Current contract amount $316,348.27
Previous payments $316,348.27
Current payment due $0.00

Payment Estimates (Phase I)
Original contract amount $329,821.05
Change order amount to date ($13,472.78)

Current contract amount $316,348.27
Previous payments $316,348.27
Current payment due $0.00

        Payment Estimates (Phase I)

Construction Phases Schedule Completion

Phase I - Utility Relocation Package
- Public utilities relocated to accommodate the proposed Detention Basin.

August 2013

Phase II - Detention Basin Package
- Construction of detention basin which involves soil excavation, site utility demolition/clearing and grubbing, construction of 
outfall structure, fi ne grading, installation of riprap, slope paving, construction of concrete pilot channels, and landscaping.
- Contract amount: $2,835,903.90

February 2014

Payment Estimates (Phase II)
Original contract amount $2,835,903.90
Change order amount to date ($0.00)

Current contract amount $2,835,903.90
Previous payments $1,102,471.41

Current payment due $185,250.00

Payment Estimates (Phase II)
Original contract amount $2,835,903.90
Change order amount to date ($0.00)

Current contract amount $2,835,903.90
Previous payments $1,102,471.41

Current payment due $185,250.00

Phase II - Rip-rap placed along sides and base of 
weir structure.

Phase II - Excavation continues while laying out pilot 
channels in bottom of basin.

Phase II - 24” Back slope interceptor and 36” storm 
sewer connection at south end of basin.

Phase II - Preparing base for pilot channel along east 
side of basin.

Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Project Location
The project is located along Barryknoll Lane between Gessner Road and Bunker Hill Road 
running along the south side of the Memorial City Mall. The final design and construction of the 
project was split into two phases. The first phase  that is currently under construction is between 
Bunker Hill Road and the Harris County Flood Control Channel W-151-00-00 (At the entrance 
to the Memorial City Mall west of Bettina Court).

The purpose of the 
Project is to improve local 
and regional drainage 
with the installation of 
additional storm sewer 
(2 ~ 8’x6’ reinforced 
concrete boxes) which 
will result in increased 
conveyance and  an  
additional flood storage of  
over 4.5 ac-ft. 

Project Purpose

Barryknoll East
Status Report January 2014

Project Description
The overall construction 
will consist of removal 
and replacement of storm 
sewer facilities, water 
lines, sanitary sewer, 
concrete pavement, and 
sidewalks throughout 
the project limits. The 
traffic signal at Memorial 
City Way will also 
be upgraded to meet 
current City of Houston 
Standards. 

Drainage and Roadway and Reconstruction Project
WBS No. T-170015-0001-3

Current Traffic Control 

   Project Limits

N

Status Report

• Completed paving southermost lane, east of Memorial City Way.

• Completed residential driveways east of Memorial City Way.

• Completed sidewalks along south, east of Memorial City Way.

Not to scale

• Beginning of project to Memorial City Way:
All 4 lanes open for two-way traffic

• Memorial City Way to Bunker Hill Road:

Only 2 lanes open for two-way traffic

Page 111



Construction Schedule

Contact Information:
Contractor:
Texas Sterling Construc  on Co.
20810 Fernbush
Houston, TX 77073

Construc  on Manager (CM):
Lockwood, Andrews, and Newnam, Inc. (LAN)
2925 Briarpark Dr.
Houston, TX 77042

Completed residential driveway and south lane paving east of 
Barracuda

South lane paving complete and sidewalk in progress.

Traffic control relocated east of Memorial City Way, and 
intersection opened to traffic. 

Construction Phases Schedule 
Completion

Phase I - South Side  from W151 Channel to Bunker Hill 
- Installation of north & south water lines and sanitary sewer.
- Replacement of concrete pavement, driveways, and sidewalk on south side.

July 2013

Phase II - North Side from W151 Channel to Memorial City Way Intersection 
- Build storm reinforced concrete box, concrete pavement, sidewalk, and traffi c 
signal at Memorial City Way. October 2013

Phase III - North Side from Memorial City Way to Bunker Hill
- Install remaining storm reinforced concrete box, concrete pavement, driveways, 
and sidewalk on north side.

March 2014

• Contract time is 365 calendar days.
• Notice to Proceed date – March 18, 2013
• Contract completion date – March 25, 2014

Construction Time:

* For more information please refer to TIRZ 17 website

Payment Estimates
Original contract 
amount

$5,874,319.99

Change order amount 
to date

($50,081.81)

Current contract 
amount

$5,824,238.18

Previous payments $3,188,728.50

Current payment due $68,177.13

Payment Estimates
Original contract 
amount

$5,874,319.99

Change order amount 
to date

($50,081.81)

Current contract 
amount

$5,824,238.18

Previous payments $3,188,728.50

Current payment due $68,177.13

Construction Phases Schedule 
Completion

Phase I - South Side  from W151 Channel to Bunker Hill
- Installation of north & south water lines and sanitary sewer.
- Replacement of concrete pavement, driveways, and sidewalk on south side.

July 2013

Phase II - North Side from W151 Channel to Memorial City Way Intersection 
- Build storm reinforced concrete box, concrete pavement, sidewalk, and traffi c 
signal at Memorial City Way. October 2013

Phase III - North Side from Memorial City Way to Bunker Hill
- Install remaining storm reinforced concrete box, concrete pavement, driveways, 
and sidewalk on north side.

March 2014

Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



 

Memorial City Redevelopment Authority 
8955 Katy Freeway, Suite 215 
Houston, Texas 77024 
713-829-5720 

 
 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
January 2014 
 
Currently the TIRZ 17 Redevelopment Authority has eight Capital Improvement Projects in progress. Two 
of the projects are in the construction phase and six are in the planning and design phases. The 
approximate construction cost of the CIP’s in progress is $50 million. Please see the attached schedule. 
 
T-1709, Lumpkin Road Improvements. The 60% complete design drawings were submitted to the City 
on 11/27/13. We are still in the process of acquiring the necessary ROW parcels. Our legal team with 
ABHR is spearheading the acquisition process. We will need to also acquire a drainage easement 
between Lumpkin and Spillers Lane to install a 36” diameter “straw.” The intent is to install the 
reinforced concrete pipe under the existing improvements through a trenchless process. Currently, LAN 
is working on the 90% design drawings in conjunction with SWA Group. The schedule has been extended 
45 days to account for the additional time required for a second landscape amenities package estimate. 
 
T-1715A, Barryknoll East. Barryknoll Lane, from the mall entrance to Memorial City Way was completed 
by the November 1st deadline and was open to vehicular and pedestrian traffic. Texas Sterling 
Construction is in the process of completing certain minor elements of work (such as sidewalks) along 
the south side of Barryknoll east of Memorial City Way to Bunker Hill Lane.  Once these elements are 
complete, construction activities will be suspended until AT&T completes their work. The original 
contract completion date for the Barryknoll project was 03/17/2014 and the current contract 
completion date is 03/25/2014. However, the project schedule has been severely impacted by AT&T. 
Until AT&T is finished in our work zone we will not know the real impact to our schedule and final 
completion date. It is our understanding that AT&T will be finished in about 8 to 10 weeks. Once we can 
resume our work it will take us approximately 3 months to complete the project. At this time we are 
forecasting a June or July completion date. We requested that a representative from AT&T attend the 
January 28th Board Meeting to address the issue in the public comments segment. In the meantime, we 
will continue to monitor AT&T’s progress with the intent to have Texas Sterling Construction remobilize 
as soon as AT&T completed with their work. 
 
T-1717 Town & Country West. It is anticipated that the Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) will be 
submitted to the City the week of January 27th. It will take the City 30 to 45 days for review and then 
move to the Technical Review Committee (TRC). There are two proposed options being submitted; 1) an 
un-signalized intersection, 2) a two lane round about. It is anticipated that LAN will present a proposal 
for detailed design at the March Board meeting. Detailed design is expected to take approximately 120 
days and 60 days for governmental reviews. The schedule has been extended by 25 days to account for 
a design change in the roundabout from a single lane to a double lane, and to align the start date with 
the March Board meeting for approvals. 

Page 122



T-1722, Queensbury Signalization. During the design it was discovered that the placement of the signals 
were in conflict with existing underground utilities. An alternate signal placement was recommended 
and accepted by the City. However, the alternate placement will still require some utility relocations, 
but not as severe. Also, the City has asked for a Signal Warrant Analysis Study. Moody Rambin is proving 
the traffic study. The current traffic count does not warrant the signalization of the intersection. Based 
on the results of the study, the construction phase may have to be placed on hold (Please see attached 
report from Gunda Corp). The schedule has been extended 105 days to account for additional 
governmental reviews associated with traffic study and for extra coordination of unforeseen conditions. 
 
T-1734, W140 Channel Improvements. We received a letter from Flood Control dated 12/27/13 that 
confirms HCFCD acceptance of the proposed W-140 Channel configuration (please see attached). Upon 
receipt of the letter, LAN submitted the Preliminary Engineering Report and Impact analysis to Flood 
Control. A copy of the report was provided to Klotz and Associates to prepare a proposal for the detailed 
design phase and bidding. It is anticipated that a task order for this work will be presented to the Board 
for approval at the February meeting. There is also a plan to have a special presentation to the Board 
about the project at the February meeting. The schedule has been extended by 60 days to 
accommodate for Board approval to start the detailed design phase at the February meeting. 
 
Traffic Study update. In last month’s Executive Report we mentioned a possible joint traffic study with 
MetroNational. Since then we have meet with MetroNational and they have decided to conduct a solo 
traffic study at this time. In light of this development, we have tabled the idea of a traffic study for now 
until we can move a few of our other big initiatives off our plate. Most likely we will resume the traffic 
study endeavor in 3 to 6 months. 
 
Green Street update. Last month we also reported about the Morgan Group’s interest of turning Town 
& Country Lane into a ‘green street’ from Attingham Drive all the way to Town & Country Blvd. or 
beyond. Since our last Board meeting, the Morgan Group has entered into contract with SWA Group to 
study the concept. 
 
Environmental concerns. Recently it was brought to our attention by a concerned citizen about the 
possibility of toxic dust blowing off our detention basin construction site. The concern stemmed from 
the fact that an industrial facility was formally on the site. In the due diligence phase of the property 
acquisition the TIRZ conducted an evaluation of the metals data. The attached report from GSI 
Environmental dated January 5, 2012, indicates that the soils on the site met all environmental 
regulations and pose no health hazards to humans. 
 
Community outreach update. In December and January attended numerous community events 
including Spring Branch District annual Christmas party and talked with David Hawes and Helena Brown. 
Also attended Shadow Oaks HOA meeting and gave a Lumpkin Road presentation, talked with Donna 
Collum and Brenda Stardig. Attended Super Neighborhood West meeting and talked with Ed Brown. 
Also attended Grand Parkway Opening Ceremony and talked with Ramesh Gunda and Kerry Gilbert. 
Attended Memorial Super Neighborhood meeting and gave a special presentation about the TIRZ. Had 
the honor to attend the Elected Officials Farewell luncheon as a guest of CM Pennington. Went to the 
Northwest Police Officers BBQ fundraiser at the VFW and talked with Ben Gillis, CM Stardig, Donna 
Collum, and Officer Chris Engelhardt. Attended Urban Land Institute member’s breakfast. Attended the 
Houston Realty Business Coalition breakfast with Chair Ann Givens as guest of MetroNational, talked to 
CM Pennington, CM Stardig, CM Robinson, CM Christie, and Jim Jard and had the privilege to meet Texas 
State Senator John Whitmire.  

Page 123



ID Task Name Duration Finish

1 T-1709, Lumpkin Road Improvements 584 days Thu 7/2/15

2 Detailed Design 175 days Mon 5/19/14

3 ROW Acquisition 130 days Fri 4/4/14

4 Construction 409 days Thu 7/2/15

5 Complete 0 days Thu 7/2/15

6 T-1715A, Barryknoll East 219 days Wed 7/2/14

7 Phase I Construction 18 days Fri 12/13/13

8 Demobilization 90 days Fri 3/14/14

9 Phase II Construction 110 days Wed 7/2/14

10 Complete 0 days Wed 7/2/14

11 T-1717, Town & Country West 571 days Fri 6/19/15

12 Preliminary Design 120 days Tue 3/25/14

13 Detailed Design 180 days Sun 9/21/14

14 Construction 270 days Fri 6/19/15

15 Complete 0 days Fri 6/19/15

16 T-1722 Queensbury Signalization 413 days Mon 1/12/15

17 Design 172 days Fri 5/16/14

18 Construction 240 days Mon 1/12/15

19 Complete 0 days Mon 1/12/15

20 T-1731A, Briar Branch Detention Basin 84 days Mon 2/17/14

21 Construction 84 days Mon 2/17/14

22 Complete 0 days Mon 2/17/14

23 T-1734, W140 Channel Improvements 811 days Sun 2/14/16

24 Preliminary Design 36 days Tue 12/31/13

25 Detailed Design 180 days Sat 8/23/14

26 Construction 540 days Sun 2/14/16

27 Complete 0 days Sun 2/14/16

7/2

7/2

6/19

1/12

2/17

2/14

Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2

2013 2014 2015 2016

CIP SCHEDULE - PROJECTS IN PROGRESS

January 2014

Memorial City Redevelopment Authority

TIRZ 17 

Page 124



 

 
 6161 Savoy, Suite 550  Houston, Texas 77036

(P) 713.541.3530  www.gundacorp.com 

GUNDA COR POR ATION 
Engineers, Planners & Managers  
 
January 21, 2014                      

Mr. Don Huml 
Executive Director 
Memorial City Redevelopment Authority 
8955 Katy Freeway, Suite 215 
Houston, TX 77024 
 
RE:  TIRZ #17 Queensbury‐Town and Country Blvd Signal   
  Progress Report for work performed through January 21, 2014 
  GUNDA Project #13017‐01 
 
Dear Mr. Huml: 
 
I.  Work Performed through January 21, 2014: 

- Attended a meeting with City of Houston (Mazen Abdulrazzak & T Rebagay) and 
discussed  the  intersection  improvements,  storm  sewer  relocation, AT&T  cable 
relocation and Centerpoint Energy gas line relocation 

- Worked on updating the signal modifications  
 

II.  Work anticipated next period: 
- Coordinating  with  Developer  and  starting  the  paper  work  for  obtaining 

additional ROW corner clip for the signal pole 
- Reviewing  the  ADA  ramps  and  crosswalks  (pavers)  designed  by  Kudela  & 

Weinheimer 
- Coordinating with CenterPoint Energy to obtain power service for the signal 
- Work on median modification plan,  storm  sewer  relocation plan  and  roadway 

improvement plan 
 

III.  Upcoming Deliverables: 
- 75% Submittal of Design Plans   

 

IV.  Future Scheduled Meetings: 
- None 

 
V.  Information required: 

- City of Houston approval for Signal Warrant Analysis Study 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Lokesh Vijayagopal, P.E., PTOE   

Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



 
 

 

 

END OF REPORT 

Page 137


	03 Meeting Minutes of December 3rd
	04a December 2013 Financials
	04b TIRZ 17 JAN 2014 BKP RPT
	04c INVOICE - December 2013
	04d INVOICE - January 2014
	04e INVOICE - ABHR December 2013
	04f INVOICE - LAN 012114
	04g INVOICE - SWA Group 012114
	04h INVOICE - Klotz 122313
	06 ltr to SBMD
	07a 140121_AMENITIES COST ESTIMATE & ILLUS
	07b 140114 RHTs401 Rvsd Lumkin Dtl Design_
	I. SCOPE OF SERVICES
	1. Review comments and direction received from the Board of Directors for the Zone at its 28 January 2014 meeting. Accordingly, make necessary adjustments to the conceptual design including scope and costs.
	2. Develop sheet layout and related details to mobilize the sub-consultants for irrigation and power.

	II. DEVELOPMENT BUDGETS
	A. Based upon the current level of information on the project, and our understanding of the present concept, we estimate that the approximate budget for construction of items under the above scope of services may range between $600,000. - $900,000. Th...
	B. In the event that this development budget is reduced or increased by more than 10% between the time of approval of the landscape concept phase and the time of award of a construction contract, cost of modification of drawings and specifications to ...

	III. DESIGN APPROVAL
	IV. MEETINGS AND SITE VISITS
	V. SCHEDULE
	VI. EXCLUSIONS TO SCOPE OF SERVICES
	A. Topography and boundary surveys.
	B. Legal descriptions of property.
	C. Soils testing and/or engineering.
	D. Existing site engineering and utility base information.
	E. Overhead aerial photographs at controlled scale.
	F. Engineering other than that provided within the Scope of Services.

	VII. FEES
	VII.   TERMS

	07b1 HHEC_Lumpkin Rd._Pro3
	07b2 Lumpkin Road TIRZ 17 - p02
	07c MOU - Westview Detention Basin Maintenance
	07d HCC 470560
	07e signed proposal 1-30-14
	08a January-briar branch status report
	08b INVOICE - McKean December 2013
	09a January-barryknoll status report
	09b INVOICE - TSC January
	10 Executive Directors report January 2014
	10a SCHEDULE - CIP in Progress January 2014 - Copy
	10b Gunda Report
	10c Letter from HCFCD dated 122713
	10d Evaluation of Metal data - GSI Environmental
	15END OF REPORT



